

Journal of Contemporary Dental Sciences

Volume: 06, No: 02

July, 2018

Contents

Editorial

* Asad-Uz-Zaman

Original Article

- * Evaluation of perceptions and experiences of students and tutors in regards to Goal-Oriented Learning as a model of curriculum delivery in teaching Public Health among dental undergraduate students

 MTH Chowdhury, SK Nath, AE Noor, CP Podder, S Mahbuba
- Oral Health status and Tooth Brushing Practices among Urban School Going Adolescents in Sylhet, Bangladesh MNA Miah, MAQ Mia, RI Smrity
- * A Survey on Prevalance of Common Dental Problems among Patients Attending Dentistry OPD at Cox's Bazar medical college hospital M N Kabir, MB Ahmed, M Khan
- * Item Analysis of MCQ, Part of An assessment Tool Evaluation H Rekha, S Gazi, M Asadullah
- Non-Alcoholic Fatty Liver disease in Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus CS Bose, M Sarker

Reveiw Article

* An Overview on Protocol For Periodontal Therapy
JU Mahmood

An Official Publication of Sapporo Dental College, Dhaka, Bangladesh Recognized by Bangladesh Medical & Dental Council (BM&DC)



Journal of Contemporary Dental Sciences (JCDS)

Recognized by Bangladesh Medical and Dental Council (BM&DC)

Vol. 6, No. 2, July, 2018

An Official Publication of Sapporo Dental College Uttara, Dhaka

Address

Sapporo Dental College & Hospital

Plot # 24, Court Bari Road, Sector # 08, Uttara Model Town Dhaka-1230, Cell: 01678026854, 01678026855, 01678026858 E-mail: sdch@bol-online.com, Web: www.sdch.edu.bd

Graphics Idea: Maruf Hussain, SDCH

Publication of Sapporo Dental College and Printed at IDEA Printers, Katabon, Dhaka. 02-9662116 E-mail: ideaprinters@yahoo.com

Journal Committee

Advisors

Prof. S.A. Ashraf, MBBS, MS, FCPS, FRCS

Prof. Md. Shelim Bhuiyan, MBBS, FCPS

Prof. M.A. Hannan, BDS, MPH, PhD

Prof. Mohiuddin Ahmed, BDS, PhD, FCPS

Dr. Md. Mizanur Rahman, BDS

Chief Editor

Prof. Asad-Uz-Zaman, BDS, DDS, PhD

Sub-Editors

Prof. Dr. Md. Asif Iqbal Khan, BDS, MPH, GDSc

Dr. Md. Tawfique Hossain Chowdhury, BDS, DDPHRCS, MSc

Board of Editors

Prof. Nurul Amin BDS, PhD

Prof. Mohammad Afsan, MBBS, MPhil

Prof. Dr. A.B.M. Omar Faruque MBBS, MPhil

Prof. Dr. Sufia Nasrin Rita BDS, FCPS

Dr. Atia Anjum BDS, PhD

Dr. Zunaid Ahmed BDS, PhD

Dr. Anjuman Ara Yesmin Khan BDS, PhD

Dr. Salina Akter MBBS, MPhil

Dr. AFM Almas Chowdhury BDS, DDS, FCPS, PhD

Dr. Spina Luna Biswas BDS, FCPS

Dr. Taslima Rafique MBBS, MPhil

Members

Dr. Rafiul Alam Khan MBBS, MPhil

Prof. Dr. Md Fazlul Karim MBBS, MD

Dr. Umma Habiba BDS, DDS

Dr. Shahnaz Parvin BDS, DDS

Dr. Abdullah Al Mahmud BDS, FCPS

Dr. Faria Tabassum BDS, FCPS

Dr. Sujan Kanti Nath, BDS, MPH

Dr. Ashek Elahi Noor, BDS, MPH

Dr. Mahdee Hasan, BDS, FCPS

Journal of Contemporary Dental Sciences Official Publication of Sapporo Dental College, Uttara, Dhaka

Instruction to Contributors

- * Journal of Contemporary Dental Sciences is the official publication of Sapporo Dental College. The Journal is published twice a year in the month of January and July.
- * The Journal Publishes original articles, case reports and review articles related to Dental/Medical science. The style of the papers should be in the modified Vancouver style (Ref. New England Journal Medicine 1997; 336:309-15).
- * Papers should be submitted to the Chief Editor, Journal of Contemporary Dental Sciences, Sapporo Dental College, 24, Courtbari Road, Sector 8, Uttara, Dhaka.

General Instruction

- * Type manuscripts double spaced including references, figures with legends, and tables on one side of A4 page only. Leave 1-inch margin on all sides with number in every page beginning with the abstract page and including texts, tables, references and figures.
- Cite each reference in numerical order and list in the references section.
- * Use SI units of measure.
- * Assemble manuscripts in this order: (1) Title page with author information (2) Acknowledgements (3) Abstract page, (4) Text, (5) References, (6) Tables, (7) figures with legends.
- * As a general rule, the articles should not exceed 10-12 pages. Over-length manuscripts should not be accepted for publication.
- Submit two copies of the manuscript accompanied by a soft copy preferably CD in MS Word.

Title page with author information (1st page but do not number)

Text page must include:

- * Full title of the article not exceeding 50 characters with three to five key words for use as indexing terms and a running title for use on the top of text pages.
- * Authors' names, highest academic degree, affiliations, and complete address for correspondence including fax number, telephone number and e-mail address
- Authors should reveal all the conflicts of interest on this page

The acknowledgments page (second page but do not number)

 List all the sources of funding for the research, plus substantive contributions of individuals (Note: If the article is published, this section will be printed at the end of the text)

Abstract page (First numbered page)

- Do not cite references in the abstract. Be concise (250 words maximum)
- Limit use of acronyms and abbreviations.
 Abbreviations must be defined at the first mention.
- * The abstract should cover background and purpose (description and rationale for study); Methods (brief description of methods); results (presentation of significant results); and Conclusion (succinct statement of data interpretation) preferably under separate headings.

The Text

The following are typical main headings:

Introduction, Material and Methods, Results, Discussion and Conclusion

- Introduction: Summarize the rationale for the study with pertinent references. The purpose(s) of the study should be clearly cited.
- * Materials and Methods: Identify type of study and describe study subjects and methods used. Provide methods of statistical analysis. Cite references for standard study and statistical methods. Describe new or modified methods. Identify apparatus (with name and address of the manufacturer) used. Generic names of drugs must be given. Manuscripts that describe studies on humans must indicate that the study was approved by institutional Ethical Committee and the subjects gave informed consent. Add statistical analysis.
- Results: Present only important results/ observation in logical sequence in the text, tables or illustrations with relevant statistics
- Discussion: Emphasis new and important results and the conclusion that follows including implications and limitations. Relate observations to other relevant studies.

- * References: Accuracy of reference data is the author's responsibility. Verify all entries against original sources, especially journal titles, inclusive page numbers, publication dates. All authors must be listed if less than six. List only first three and add et. al. if more than six. Personal communications, unpublished observations, and submitted manuscripts must be cited in the text as "({name/s}, unpublished data, year)". Abstracts may be cited only if they are the sole source and must be identified in the references as "Abstract". "In press" citations must have been accepted for publication and add the name of the journal or book including publisher. Use Vancouver style, for example:
- World Health Organization: WHO recommendations: Obesity: Preventing and Managing the Global Epidemic. Geneva, World Health Org., 2000 (Tech. Rep. Ser. No. 894)
- Rashid M. Food and Nutrition. In Rashid KM, Rahman M, Haider S eds. Textbook of Community Medicine and Public Health. 4th edn. RHM Publishers 2004; 126-140
- Sayeed MA, Hussain MZ, Banu A, Rumi MAK, Azad AK. Prevalence of diabetes in a suburban population of Bangladesh Diab Res Clin Prac 1997; 34: 149-155
- Jarett RJ. Insulin and hypertension (Letter). Lancet 1987; 2: 748-749
- Banerji MA, Faridi N, Atulri R, Chiken RI, Lebovitz HE. Body composition, visceral fat, leptin and insulin resistance in Asian Indian men. J Clin Endocrinol Metab 1999; 84: 137-144 (Abstract)
- Anwar AKMN & Fariduddin KM, Innovation and re-orientation in medical education and research: Challenges for Ibrahim Medical College. Ibrahim Med. Coll. J. 2007;1(1): 1-2 (Editorial)

Tables

* Each table must be typed on a separate sheet and double spaced. The table number should be Arabic, followed by a brief informative title. Place explanatory matter in footnotes. For footnotes use symbol in this sequence: *, ***, etc.

Figures

* Line drawings, photomicrographs, colour prints and halftones should be camera ready, good quality glossy prints. Submit only originals of laser prints, not photocopies. A set of original figures must be submitted. Indicate figure number, short figure title on top of figure lightly in pencil. Any abbreviations or symbols used in the figure must be defined in the figure or figure legend. Keep an original set for your records.

Editing:

All submitted manuscripts are subject to scrutiny by the Chief Editor or any member of the editorial board. Manuscripts containing materials without sufficient scientific value and of no priority issue, or not fulfilling the requirements for publication may be rejected or may be sent back to the author/s for resubmission with necessary modifications to suit one of the submission categories of the journal. Manuscripts fulfilling the requirements and found suitable for publications are sent for peer review. Submissions found suitable by the reviewer, may need revision/modifications before being finally accepted. Editorial board finally decides upon the publish ability of the revised manuscript. Proof of an accepted manuscript may be sent to the author/s and should be corrected and returned to the editorial board within one week. No addition to the manuscript at this stage should be accepted. All accepted manuscripts are edited according to the Journal's rule.

Communication Information:

* Communication information for all correspondence is always printed in the title page of the journal. Any additional information or any other inquiry relating to submission of the article the Chief Editor or the Journal office may be contacted.

Copyright:

No part of the materials published in this journal may be reproduced in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise without the prior written permission of the publisher. Reprints of any article in the journal will be available from the publisher

Journal of Contemporary Dental Sciences

Official Publication of Sapporo Dental College, Uttara, Dhaka

Editorial



We are pleased to publish Volume 6, Issue 2, of Journal of Contemporary Dental Sciences. We have included 5 original articles in this issue.

Goal oriented learning (GOL) is the current concept in teaching learning pedagogy. Lecture based methods are age old method in teaching which usually involves one sided presentation of topics, leaving very little room for discussion. Chowdury MTH et al. in their paper discussed their experience and opinions of both students and tutors on the GOL method compared to lecture- based teaching.

Miah MNA et. al in their paper described the oral health status and tooth brushing practices among school going adolescent urban children in Sylhet. Dr. MN Kabir in his descriptive study discussed the prevalence of common dental problems in dental OPD of Cox's bazaar medical college hospital, Bangladesh. Both these papers covered two major cities of Bangladesh, Sylhet and Cox's bazaar.

Dr. Husneara Rekha in her article 'Item analysis of MCQ, part of an assessment tool evaluation,' had an elaborate presentation on effectiveness of MCQ evaluation and assessment system.

We included the study findings of Dr. CS Bose and M Sarker in this issue. Their paper discusses issues regarding Non- Alcoholic fatty lives disease in type-2 diabetes mellitus. In addition An Overveiw on Protocol for Periodental Therapy by Dr. JU Mahmood has also been included in this issue.

padr 88min

Professor (Dr.) Asad-Uz-Zaman, BDS, DDS, PhD

Professor and Head, Department of Oral Pathology and Periodontology

Sapporo Dental College & Hospital

Chief Editor, Journal of Contemporary Dental Sciences.

Mailing Address: Plot-24, Courtbari Road, Sector-8, Uttara Model town,

Dhaka -1230, Bangladesh, Email: sdch@bol-online.com

Journal of Contemporary Dental Sciences (JCDS) An Official Publication of Sapporo Dental College, Uttara, Dhaka

Vol. 6, No. 2

JU Mahmood

July, 2018

Contents

E	ditorial	Page No
*	Asad-Uz-Zaman	
o	riginal Article	
*	Evaluation of perceptions and experiences of students and tutors in regards to Goal-Oriented Learning as a model of curriculum delivery in teaching Public Health among dental undergraduate students MTH Chowdhury, SK Nath, AE Noor, CP Podder, S Mahbuba	
*	Oral Health status and Tooth Brushing Practices among Urban School Going Adolescents in Sylhet, Bangladesh MNA Miah, MAQ Mia, RI Smrity	10
*	A Survey on Prevalance of Common Dental Problems among Patients Attending Dentistry OPD at Cox's Bazar medical college hospital M N Kabir, MB Ahmed, M Khan	14
*	Item Analysis of MCQ, Part of An assessment Tool Evaluation H Rekha, S Gazi, M Asadullah	18
*	Non-Alcoholic Fatty Liver disease in Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus CS Bose, M Sarker	22
Re	veiw Article	
*	An Overview on Protocol For Periodontal Therapy	

25

Evaluation of perceptions and experiences of students and tutors in regards to Goal-Oriented Learning as a model of curriculum delivery in teaching Public Health among dental undergraduate students

MTH Chowdhury¹, SK Nath², AE Noor³, CP Podder⁴, S Mahbuba⁵

Abstract

Background: Goal-Oriented Learning (GOL) teaching methodology might increase dental students' skill to achieve desired public health goal. Purpose: The objective of this study is to explore the perceptions and experiences of students and tutors in regards to GOL system in comparison to traditional lecture method. Method: The study was conducted among all the 2nd year BDS students of Sapporo Dental College using Quasi-Experimental design. Intervention and control group were taught using GOL and lecture based method, respectively. Students and tutors perceptions and experiences were evaluated using modified course experience questionnaire and tutor response questionnaire. Result: Although most of the students of GOL system perceived that it contributes in developing their generic skill like improving problem solving, analytic and expression skill, majority of them reported that workload was heavy on them. Most of the students were satisfied relating to tutor role, facilities available and evaluation system in GOL group. Overall satisfactions were superior in GOL groups in comparison to lecture group among both students and tutors. Conclusion: The study reveals that majority of students and tutors gave more positive feedback regarding GOL experience and consider it superior than lecture-based system.

Key Words: Curriculum, Tutor role, Lecture Method

(J Cont Dent Sci 2018;6(2): 1-9

Introduction

Public health is the branch of medical science where population or communities are in the focus of interest rather than the individual only. In order to achieve desired health goal and to make a public health program successful, efforts from both public health experts and communities are essential. For that reason, public health experts should have sufficient skills to involve communities actively in all kind of health program.

Like other medical professionals, dentists have important role in improving oral and general health of the population by providing preventive and curative management. Poor dentist-population ratio (0.3 per 10000 people)² is responsible for lack of availability of basic dental treatment to large proportion of the community. Dentists should have necessary public health skills, which could be achieved by appropriate learning process.

Medical and dental education process should strive to promote the behavior of lifelong learning among the students, which ultimately facilitate independent and critical thinking skill. These type skills enable future health professionals to solve health problems of individuals and communities in real life scenario.³ Therefore, a pedagogic approach is needed where students should be at the center of education and guided by setting specific learning goals. Thus, a goal oriented learning system has been proposed in this study for piloting among dental undergraduates.

Traditional lecture-based system is type of one-way communication where tutor or lecturer delivers his presentation on a particular topic and students passively receive it. This method is used to deliver information regarding a concept or fact to a large group within a short period time.

Address of Correspondence

Mohammad Tawfique Hossain Chowdhury, Associate Professor and Head, Department of Dental Public Health, Sapporo Dental College and Hospital. Email: drtawfique@hotmail.com. Moible: +88-01720245861

Mohammad Tawfique Hossain Chowdhury, Associate Professor and Head, Department of Dental Public Health, Sapporo Dental College and Hospital

Sujan Kanti Nath, Assistant Professor, Department of Dental Public Health, Sapporo Dental College and Hospital

Ashek Elahi Noor, Assistant Professor, Department of Dental Public Health, Sapporo Dental College and Hospital

Clopa Pina Podder, Lecturer, Department of Dental Public Health, Sapporo Dental College and Hospital

^{5.} Sabiha Mahbuba, Dental Surgeon

Lectures are widely used method in many institutions of the world. The main disadvantage of this pedagogy is that there is very little chance of interaction between the students themselves and the teachers. Therefore, it discourages critical thinking and participation of students in learning process.⁷

On the other hand, GOL pedagogy might increase dental students' skills to achieve desire public health goal by active participation of the students. However, this kind of goal oriented Public Health Education strategy has never been tried and evaluated among dental undergraduates particularly in the field of dental public health in Bangladesh. Therefore, this study aims to explore the perceptions and experiences of students and tutors in regards to implementing the GOL system in comparison to traditional method.

Material and Methods

The study conducted was by using Quasi-Experimental design. Two groups were taken for the study intervention group and control group. The study was conducted in classroom setting among 2nd year BDS (Bachelor of Dental Surgery) students of Sapporo Dental College and Hospital, Uttara, Dhaka as whole population from June 2014 to October 2014. Students who did not give consent or who were absent during the selected module of the course and who did not take part or completed all evaluation tests and questionnaire were excluded from the study

Among the four tutorial groups in 2nd year BDS course, one group was randomly chosen as intervention or experimental group and rest of the three groups were chosen as control group. Two subjects from the intervention group and three subjects from the control group had been excluded because of incomplete participation into the course. The final numbers of subjects in intervention and control group were 20 and 61, respectively.

Ethical approval and permission for the research was taken from the authority of Sapporo Dental College and Hospital before conduction of the study. Each participant was informed in details about research methodology and informed written consent was taken from each respondent.

To explore the experience and perceptions of participating students regarding GOL system and traditional lecture based system, a Modified Course Experience Questionnaire was used. The Course Experience Questionnaire (CEQ), a standardized global index, was designed to measure quality of teaching and learning experience, which has been developed by Ramsden (1991).4 To evaluate the experience of students regarding GOL and traditional lecture based system a slightly modified version of CEQ was used in this study including some items of Modified Qassim University Course Experience Ouestionnaire. Five points Likert response scale ranging from strongly agree to strongly disagree has been used in this questionnaire.4.5 The number of item in this modified version of questionnaire was 29.

To explore the opinion and evaluation of the tutors regarding GOL system, a tutor response questionnaire was used. Five point Likert scale also used here.^{4,5}

Learning modules for the selected dental public health topics were Primary Oral Health Care, Dental Health Education, School Dental Health Programme, Planning and Evaluation of Dental Health Services. For application of GOL and traditional lecture based strategy, necessary resources like relevant papers, updated journals and information resources like computer, Internet service and audio-visual aids were used. Interventional/Experimental group (n=20) was taught using GOL system and control (n=61) with traditional lecture based system.

GOL system were taught by four tutors under the guidance of Dr. Mohammad Tawfique Hossain Chowdhury, who had been trained in 'New Concepts in Public Health Education' and Problem Based Learning system at Radboud University, Nijmegen, The Netherlands. Traditional lecture based system were taught by other tutors of the department. Both GOL and traditional system of teaching were applied in tutorial session.

Experiences and perceptions regarding given education strategy was explored both from intervention and control group and also from the tutor at the end of the study. Modified Course Experience Questionnaire4 and Tutor response questionnaire5 were used in this regard.

Statistical package for Social Sciences (SPSS) for

Windows version 17 was used to analyze the data.

Results

Most of the intervention group respondents reported that tutor motivated them in self-directed learning, appeared more concerned regarding understanding students' perceived difficulties during study and were hard working in making the subject interesting. However, in explaining the subject topics and giving feedback to students, almost similar experiences observed both in intervention and control group (Table 1).

Table 1: Perceptions and experiences of students regarding good teaching during delivery of GOL and traditional lecture based system

Items	Group	Strongly agree %	Agree %	Neutral %	Dis-Agree%	Strongly disagree	I do not know %
The tutors of this course motivated me	Intervention	30	65	5	0	0	0
to self directed learning	Control	14.8	57.4	8.2	13.1	4.9	1.6
The staff made a real effort to understand	Intervention	25	65	5	0	5	0
difficulties I might be having with my work.	Control	13.1	70.5	9.8	3.3	0	3.3
The teaching staff normally gave me	Intervention	20	75	0	0	0	5
helpful feedback on how I was going	Control	24.6	67.2	8.2	0	0	0
My lecturers were	Intervention	40	60	0	0	0	0
extremely good at explaining things	Control	39.3	54.1	6.6	0	0	0
The teaching staff	Intervention	30	70	0	0	0	0
worked hard to make their subjects interesting	Control	29.5	50.8	9.8	9.8	0	0

Most of the respondents from intervention group agreed that tutors made it clear at the beginning what was expected from them (90%) and the students also had the clear idea about their expected goal (95%) (Table 2).

Table 2: Perceptions and experiences of students regarding obtaining clear goal during delivery of GOL and traditional lecture based system

Items	Group	Strongly agree%	Agree %	Neutral %	Dis- Agree %	Strong ly disagree %	I do not know%
It was always easy	Intervention	5	70	20	0	0	5
to know the standard of work expected by teachers	Control	9.8	65.6	13.1	8.2	0	3.3
I usually had a clear idea of where	Intervention	20	75	5	0	0	0
I was going and what was expected of me in this course*	Control	4.9	60.7	18	13.1	0	3.3
To do well in this course all I really	Intervention	30	55	10	0	0	5
need is the ability to find target information	Control	14.8	65.6	11.5	6.6	0	1.6
The staff made it clear right from	Intervention	10	80	5	5	0	0
he start what they expected from tudents	Control	11.5	57.4	26.2	1.6	0	3.3

^{*} P - 0.05

Most of the intervention group participants agreed that the workload was too heavy on them. Furthermore, majority of the intervention group reported that they were not given enough time to understand things they should learn (Table 3).

Table 3: Perceptions and experiences of students regarding study workload during delivery of GOL and traditional lecture based system

Items	Group	Strongly agree %	Agree %	Neutral %	Dis- Agree %	Strongly disagree %	I do not know %
The workload was too	Intervention	50	25	0	20	0	5
heavy*	Control	23	34.4	16.4	26.2	0	0
I was generally given enough time to	Intervention	15	45	15	25	0	0
understand the things I had to learn*	Control	6.6	70.5	18	3.3	1.6	0
There was a lot of pressure on me to do	Intervention	25	45	20	10	0	0
well in this course	Control	29.5	44.3	13.1	13.1	0	0

^{*} P - 0.05

Majority of the students from intervention group agreed that GOL system improved their generic skills, such as analytic and working ability as a team member, their expression skills and their ability to plan own work in comparison to traditional system (Table 4).

Table 4: Perceptions and experiences of students regarding achievement of generic skills during delivery of GOL and traditional lecture based system

Items	Group	Strongly agree %	Agree %	Neutral %	Dis- Agree %	Strongly disagree %	I do not know %
The course	Intervention	30	60	0	10	0	0
sharpened my analytic skills.	Control	13.1	57.4	23	4.9	0	1.6
The course helped me develop my	Intervention	40	60	0	0	0	0
ability to work as a team member*	Control	11.5	57.4	21.3	9.8	0	0
As a result of my	Intervention	40	60	0	0	0	0
course, I feel confident about tackling unfamiliar problems*	Control	8.2	49.2	18	23	0	1.6
The course	Intervention	55	40	0	5	0	0
improved my expression skills*	Control	11.5	44.3	14.8	29.5	0	0
My course helps	Intervention	40	45	10	5	0	0
me to develop the ability to plan my own work*	Control	11.5	57.4	19.7	11.5	0	0

Most of the study participants from Intervention group agreed that they were satisfied about the evaluation method of the course and they thought that it was fair (Table 5).

Table 5: Perceptions and experiences of students regarding assessment procedure during delivery of GOL and traditional lecture based system

ltems	Group	Strongly agree %	Agree %	Neutral %	Dis- Agree %	Strongly disagree %	I do no know %
The staff seemed more interested in testing what i had understood	Intervention	10	70	20	0	0	0
	Control	14.8	62.3	19.7	3.3	0	0
Tutors asked me questions just	Intervention	0	10	25	55	10	0
about facts not concepts	Control	1.6	16.4	14.8	63.9	1.6	1.6
The evaluation system in the college is not student centered, as	Intervention	0	25	30	30	5	10
it does not reflect the improvement made by the student with the passage of time.	Control	1.6	14.8	11.5	50.8	8.2	13.1
am satisfied about the method of evaluation of our course and i	Intervention	30	65	5	0	0	0
hink it is fair. *	Control	3.3	73.8	16.4	6.6	0	0

^{*} P - 0.05

Majority of the respondents in both groups were satisfied with the facilities available for the course, therefore, they developed more interest with the passage of time and ultimately they were overall satisfied with the quality of the course. However, intervention group member were more satisfied in comparison to control group (Table 6).

Table 6: Perceptions and experiences of students regarding overall satisfaction related to GOL and traditional lecture based system.

Items	Group	Strongly agree %	Agree %	Neutral %	Dis- Agree %	Strongly disagree %	I do not know %
I am satisfied with the facilities (books, internet)	Intervention	10	70	15	5	0	0
available for the course	Control	14.8	62.3	9.8	11.5	0	1.6
I develop more interest with	Intervention	5	85	5	5	0	0
the passage of time	Control	6.6	68.9	18	3.3	1.6	1.6
Overall, I was satisfied with the quality of this course	Intervention	40	55	5	0	0	0
	Control	18	73.8	8.2	0	0	0

All the students of intervention group reported that GOL system developed their problem solving skills. Most of them were satisfied about tutor role and evaluation method, assignment given and group dynamics during GOL course. All of them spent their time in preparing presentation during weekly problem solving. In addition, they mostly depended on books and GOL discussion groups as sources of information (Table 7).

Table 7: Perceptions and experiences of students regarding GOL system.

Items	Strongly agree %	Agree %	Neutral %	Dis- Agree %	Strongly disagree %	I do not know %
GOL course develop my problem solving skill so far	30	70	0	0	0	0
I was satisfied about- a) Tutor role in GOL session	25	75	0	0	0	0
b) Assignment given	30	65	5	0	0	0
c) My group dynamics	25	65	10	0	0	0
d) Tutors evaluation	30	70	0	0	0	0
For the weekly problem solving I spend my time in:						
a) Understanding the problem and finding objectives	20	75	0	5	0	0
b) Searching the literature	15	75	0	10	0	0
c) Preparing presentation	10	90	0	0	0	0
I depended mostly on the following sources:						
a) Books	35	65	0	0	0	0
b) Internet	30	65	0	5	0	0
c) Tutors and lectures	40	50	5	5	0	0
d) GOL groups	25	75	0	0	0	0
In my opinion, GOL system is better than traditional system	50	50	0	0	0	0

All the tutors agreed that students' expression skills were improved and they had achieved an acceptable level of understanding regarding subject topics/problems after GOL session. Moreover, majority of tutors reported that GOL course sharpened analytic skills among students, made them more goal oriented and interested in GOL activity with the passage of time. Finally, most of the tutors agreed that GOL system is better than traditional system (Table 8).

Table 8: Tutors evaluation and opinions regarding GOL system

Items	Strongly agree %	Agree %	Neutral %	Dis- Agree %	Strongly disagree %	I do not know %
The course sharpened the analytic skills of students	25	50	0	25	0	0
The students were more specific and goal-oriented with the passage of time	0	75	0	25	0	0
Students interest in GOL activity increased with the passage of time	25	50	0	0	25	0
The course improved student's expression skills	50	50	0	0	0	0
The students usually reach an acceptable level of understanding the problem/topics at the end of GOL session	0	100	0	0	0	0
In my opinion, GOL system is better than traditional system	50	25	25	0	0	0

Discussion

Goal-oriented learning (GOL) approach was evaluated in this study to see whether this pedagogy improve learner s skills and satisfaction during study of dental public health. GOL system adopted the approach of problem-based learning, therefore, it is an active learning process for the students where teachers act as facilitators. On the other hand, the more commonly used method of instruction is lecture based teaching that encourages passive learning where students try to memorize concepts instead of critically analyze and apply it in real life scenario.⁶

Four aspects of knowledge such as knowledge information related to concept and understanding, analysis and application of the concept had been evaluated between both GOL and traditional lecture based group. This study found that level of good score and mean knowledge score were significantly increased in GOL group in comparison to lecture group in post intervention evaluation.

Similar findings were also observed in other studies.⁷⁻¹⁰ Moreover, it may be due to fact that PBL method increase retention of knowledge.¹¹

Like PBL method, GOL method fostered intrinsic motivation among students, helped them to understand, analyze and research the targeted concept through critical thinking process and ultimately guide them in action in applying the concept to address a public health issue by working together as a team.5,12 This study also shows that most of the students agreed that GOL system improved their different cognitive skill like analytic and expression skills, problem solving skills, tackling unfamiliar problems, enhance working capability as a team member and planning of their own work.Shamsan (2009) also found similar findings among medical undergraduate in Saudi Arabia.3 Furthermore, tutors in this study also agreed that GOL course improved the analytic and expression skills among students.

Majority of respondent from intervention group and tutor reported that GOL system had made the students more goal oriented and they had the clear idea of where they were approaching as expected. However, GOL group reported that workload was heavy on them. Similar observations also have been seen among medical undergraduates.⁵

Unlike another PBL study in a medical school of Saudi Arabia, most of the GOL group participants reported in this study that tutors motivated them to self directed learning and hard working in making the subjects interesting. GOL system participants were also satisfied with the facilities available, tutor role and the evaluation system in this study.

Overall, both the students and the tutors were satisfied regarding learning experience with GOL system and most of them agreed that GOL system is superior than traditional lectured based system. This findings are consistent with findings of others study regarding PBL.^{5,13}

Conclusion and Recommendation

In can be said that the need for public health approach is emerging in the field of dentistry to meet up the increasing need of the population. For this reason, dentists should be well equipped with necessary public health skills, which could be achieved by appropriate learning approach. GOL pedagogy had been for tried for the first time among dental undergraduates in Bangladesh. This study facilitates a platform for piloting and documenting the experience with this innovative teaching methodology. The outcomes of this study reflects that GOL system is more effective teaching method in comparison to traditional lecture based system in terms of increasing knowledge retention and skill in teaching public health to dental undergraduates. Moreover, the majority of the students and tutors reported that GOL system was superior to traditional system in regards to satisfying learning experience. Therefore, this study could be useful in teaching dental public health among dental undergraduates.

However, more studies are needed to scale up this strategy to other discipline of dentistry.

Acknowledgements

This study was generously supported by the research fellowship offered by James P. Grant School of Public Health (JPGSPH) and funded by USAID as part of their Next Generation of Public Health Experts Project (NGPHEP).

References

- Hiremath SS. Textbook of Preventive and Community Dentistry, 2007, Elsevier, New Delhi: India
- Ahmed SM, Hossain MA, Chowdhury AMR, Bhuiya AU. The health workforce crisis in Bangladesh: shortage, inappropriate skill-mix and inequitable distribution, Human Resources for Health 2011, 9:3 doi: 10.1186/1478-4491-9-3
- Ludvigsson JA. curriculum should meet future demands, Medical Teacher. 1999; 21(2):127-129
- Ramsden P. A performance indicator of teaching quality in higher education: The Course Experience Questionnaire, Studies in Higher Education, 1991; 16(2):129-150.
- Shamsan B, Syed AT. Evaluation of Problem Based Learning Course at College of Medicine, Qassim University, Saudi Arabia, International Journal of Health Sciences, Qassim University. 2009; 3(2): 239-248)
- Bahmanpoor K. ed. The effects of Problem-based learning on the development of students critical thinking, attitudes and behavior of nursing students, Tehran: Nursing Faculty of Medical University, 2002.
- Dehkordi AH, Heydamejad MS. The impact of problem-based learning and lecturing on the behavior and attitudes of Iranian nursing students. Dan Med Bull 2008;55: 224-6.
- Gibson, DR, Campbell RM. The role of cooperative learning in the training of junior hospital doctor. Med Teach. 2000; 3: 297-300
- Yang ND. Exploring a new role for teachers: Promoting learner autonomy. 1998; 26:127-35.
- Koleinie N, Shams B, Salehi M. Learning using lecture and PBL, Iran Mag Edu Med Sci. 2002; 10:57-63.
- Finucane PM, Johnson SM, Prideaux DJ. Problem-based learning: its rationale and efficacy. Med J Austral. 1998;168:445-8
- Hmelo-Silver CE. Problem-based learning: what and how do students learn? Edu Psychol Rev. 2004;16:235-66.
- Sanson-Fisher RW, Lynagh MC. Problem-based learning: a dissemination success story? Med J Austral 2005;183:258-60.

Original Article

Oral Health status and Tooth Brushing Practices among Urban School Going Adolescents in Sylhet, Bangladesh

MNA Miah¹, MAQ Mia², RI Smrity³

Abstract

Aims: The aim and objectives of the study was to investigate tooth brushing practices and oral hygiene status of 15-years old school going children. Methods: This was a cross-sectional study on oral health condition among selected school children in Sylhet city. A two stage cluster sampling design was used. The study was carried out among 116 students aged 15 years studying in class IX. Data was collected by taking personal interview of the respondents. Results: Among 116 children, 72 (62%) were boys and 44 (38%) were girls. Overall DMFT index of the students was 1.68 where as the DMFT in dex of the boys was 2.08 and that of girls was 1.02. Among the respondents, 76.72% had normal gingival condition while 23.28 % had red or swollen gingiva. About four in every ten students (42.24%) brushed their teeth once in a day while about six in every ten (57.76%) respondents brushed their teeth twice or more than twice daily. Most of the students brushed their teeth with toothpaste and 74.77% students among them used fluoride containing toothpaste. Only 2.80% students stated that they did not use fluoride containing toothpaste and 22.42% students did not know whether their toothpaste contain fluoride or not. Most of the students (91.38%) brushed their teeth before breakfast. About six in ten students (59.48%) stated that they brushed their teeth after dinner, Conclusion: Urban school going children in Sylhet have good oral hygiene practices and have low DMFT.

Key words: Oral health, brushing, caries.

J Cont Dent Sci 2018;6(2): 10-13

Introduction

The mouth and the teeth perform an essential set of functions, from the most basic eating and speaking, to more subtle social functions related to appearance and non-verbal communication. Primary human dentition comprises of 20 deciduous teeth while permanent dentition comprises of 32 permanent teeth. Good oral health is not dependent on teeth alone; rather it extends to the health of the tissues supporting the teeth that is, the gums and the periodontium. Dental diseases include dental caries, developmental defects of enamel, dental erosion and periodontal diseases. The main cause of tooth loss is dental caries in which diet plays an important role. Dental caries is defined as a disease of hard tissue

of the teeth caused by the action of microorganisms on fermentable carbohydrates-principally sugar for a period of time. Dental caries is a major problem affecting an estimated 90% of school children worldwide.² At the individual level, caries is a preventable disease. Given its dynamic nature, the disease once established, can be arrested or reversed prior to significant cavitations taking place. The carious process is essentially the same in primary and secondary dentitions.³

Oral health status in adult can be assessed by the presence or absence of dental caries by DMFT (DMFT, here D = decayed, M = missing, F = filled teeth) index which was introduced by Klein, Palmer and Knutson in 1938.⁴ This index measures the prevalence of dental caries on teeth. Eating patterns and food choice among children and teens are important factors that affect how quickly youngsters may develop tooth decay. The reason is sticky film of bacteria, called plaque that constantly forms on teeth and gums.⁵ The regular and proper cleaning and brushing of teeth is required to prevent decay and thereby prevent loss of teeth in children and adults.

Address of Correspondence

Dr Md Nurul Amin Miah, BDS, MSc (London), Assistant Professor, Dental Unit, Sylhet MAG Osmani Medical College, Cell phone: 01711-945855 Email: dramin5855@gmail.com

Dr Md Nurul Amin Miah, BDS, MSc (London), Assistant Professor, Dental Unit, Sylhet MAG Osmani Medical College

Dr Md Abul Quashem Mia, BDS, DDS (BSMMU), Associate Professor, Dental Unit, Sylhet MAG Osmani Medical College

Dr Rashmin Islam Smrity, BDS, Intern Doctor, Dental Unit , Sylhet MAG Osmani Medical College

Good oral health is important because the experience of pain, problems with eating, chewing, smiling and communication due to missing, discolored or damaged teeth have a major impact on people s daily lives and well being.6 Furthermore, oral diseases restrict activities at school, at work and at home causing millions of school and work hours to be lost each year throughout the world,7 Children who suffer from poor oral health are 12 times more likely to have more restricted activity days including missing schools than those who don't.8 Historically, most important global burdens of the oral health are dental caries and periodontal disease.9 As dental caries is the most common dental disease with high prevalence, it is crucial to control the disease process by assessing and rendering the treatment required along with spreading awareness regarding its prevention. But for developing appropriate preventive approaches, anticipating utilization patterns and planning effectively for organization and financing of dental resources, the knowledge of oral health status and treatment needs of populations with different characteristics is important.

The school remains an important setting, offering an efficient and effective way to reach children and through their families and community member. School age is an influential stage in people's life when lifelong sustainable oral health related behaviors, as well a beliefs and attitudes, are being developed.10 Children are particularly receptive during this period and the earlier the habits are established, the longer the lasting impact. Moreover, the massages can be reinforced regularly throughout the school years.11 A variety of oral hygiene measures have been used since before recorded history. Tooth brush is an oral hygiene instrument to clean the teeth and gums.12 The purposes of tooth brushing are to prevent the buildup of plaque that forms on the surfaces of teeth. Tooth brushing with a fluoridated toothpaste can provides benefit through the topical effect of fluoride and plaque removal from the tooth surfaces.13

The aim and objectives of the study was to investigate tooth brushing practices and oral hygiene status of 15 years students in Sylhet city.

Materials and methods

This was a descriptive type of cross-sectional study. The target population included all the 15 years students of class IX of all secondary school at Sylhet city in Bangladesh and the sample included 116 students of that city. A two-stage cluster sampling design was used to produce a representative sample of students. The first stage sample frame consists of all secondary schools of Sylhet city. The list of secondary school was taken from District Education Office. The schools were listed and two schools were selected from the list by lottery. The second stage sample frame consists of all students of class IX of the selected two schools. Data was collected by direct interview of the students and clinical examination. Clinical examination was done after taking verbal consent of the respondents. Data analysis was conducted by SPSS 15.0 software package. Statistical differences were determined by comparing the range of the 95% confidence interval.

Results

Total number of students of the school was 121 of whom 116 students responded. The response rate was 95.9%. Among those 116 students, 72 were boys and 44 were girls (Table I)

Table 1: Distribution of respondents according to gender

Category	Number of participants	Percentage (%)
Boys	72	62
Girl s	44	38
Total	116	100

Overall DMFT index of the students was 1.68 whereas the DMFT index of boys was 2.08 and that of girls was 1.02 (Table 2).

Table 2: Distribution of respondents according to DMFT level

Category	Number of participant	Total DMFT	DMFT index
Boys	72	150	2.08
Girls	44	45	1.02
Total	116	195	1.68

The gingival condition of most of the boys and girls was normal. About one-fifth of boys and about one-fourth of girls presented with abnormal gingival (Table 3.

Table 3: Percentage (95% CI) of respondents according to gingival condition (N=116).

Category	Normal gingival (%)	Diseased gingival
Boy	79.17	20.08
	(69.79 - 88.55)	(11.45 - 30.21)
Girl	72.73	27.27
	(59.56 - 85.89)	(14.11 - 40.03)
Total	76.72	23.28
	(69.03 84.44)	(15.99 30.97)

More than four out of ten boys and about same portion of girls brushed their teeth once a day. Less than six out of ten boys and more than half of the girls brushed their teeth twice or more a day. None of the boys or girls seldom or did not brush their teeth (Table 4).

Table 4: Percentage (95% CI) of respondents according to frequency of tooth brushing (N=116).

	Category	Seldom or no brushing	Brushing once daily (%)	Brushing twice or more (%)
	Boy	00	41.67	58.33
			(29.02 - 57.82)	(46.94 - 63.72)
	Girl	00	43.18	56.82
			(29.02 - 57.82)	(42.08 - 71.45)
	Total	00	42.24	57.76
			(33.25 - 51.23)	(48.77 - 66.75)

Most of the boys brushed their teeth before breakfast (Table 5). About one in ten students brushed their teeth after breakfast. About six in ten boys and about half of the girls stated that they brushed their teeth after dinner.

Table 5: Percentage (95% CI) of respondents according to timing of tooth brushing (N=116).

Category	Before breakfast	After breakfast	After dinne
Boy	95.83	8.33	62.50
20,	(93.29-98.38)	(7.85-9.09)	(51.32-73.68
Girl	84.09	15.91	54.55
Omi	(77.46-90.72)	(14.28-17.54)	(50.33-58.73
Total	91.38	11.21	59.48
10.00	(90.91-91.85)	(9.67-13.74)	(58.65-60.3)

Most of the boys and girls brushed their teeth w_{ith} toothbrush and toothpaste (Table 6). Few students brushed their teeth with tooth powder and v_{ith} few students clean their teeth with miswak.

Table 6: Percentage (95% CI) of responder to according to tooth cleaning practice (N=116).

Category	Toothpaste	Tooth powder	Miswak
Boy	91.67	5.56	2.78
	(85.92-97.24)	(2.93-8.18)	(1.33-4.23)
Girl	93.18	4.55	2.27
	(87.06-99.30)	(2.63-6.47)	(1.55-3.45)
Total	92.24	5.17	2.59
	(86.76-97.69)	((1.22-9.12)	(1.32 - 3.68)

About one-fourth of the boys and girls used fluoridated toothpaste to clean their teeth whilst very few boys and girls used toothpaste without fluoride. About one-fifth of the students were unaware about fluoride (Table 7).

Table 7: Percentage (95% CI) of respondents according to use toothpaste with or without fluoride (N=107).

Category	Yes	No	Don t know
Boy	75.76	3.03	21.21
	(70.48-81.03)	(2.52 - 3.54)	(11.35-31.17)
Girl	73.17	2.44	24.39
	(59.29-86.73)	(1.70-3.18)	(20.38-28.41)
Total	74.77	2.80	22.42
	(66.54-82.99)	(2.50-3.11)	(14.53-30.33)

Discussion

Overall DMFT index of the students was 1.68 whereas the DMFT index of the boys was 2.08 and that of the girls was 1.02. The DMFT index was significantly higher in boys than that of girls.

Evidence had shown that strong knowledge of oral health demonstrates better oral care practice.14 Tooth brushing practice is a good measure to take of oral health. In this study, we found that 57.76% of the students brushed their teeth twice or more a day which was very higher that the figure (44.4%) reported by WHO15 but lower than the figure (95.7%) showed in a study in Sarwak, Malaysia.16 Toothbrush and toothpaste were the most commonly used oral hygiene aids. In this study, we found that 92.24% of the students clean their teeth with toothpaste. They used not only the toothpaste but toothpaste with fluoride (75.76%) which is more appreciable. This is because of availability of toothbrushes and toothpastes in all area of Bangladesh. Besides this, increased health education and awareness make the students more careful about their teeth and oral cavity. Most of the students (91.38%) brushed their teeth before breakfast and more than half (59.48%) students did it after dinner. Only 11.21% students stated that they brushed their teeth after breakfast. Brushing of the teeth after dinner and after breakfast is the most important to keep the teeth and oral cavity healthy but most of the students brushed their teeth before breakfast. This may be due to ignorance. Now-a-days, adolescents are more conscious about their oral cavity, the appearance of their teeth and mouth odor. In this study, we found that most of the student's gingival condition is normal. This may be due to regular cleaning of teeth and oral cavity, and increase awareness within the students.

Conclusion

In conclusion it can be said that overall gingival condition of the students was good. Most of the students brushed their teeth twice a day. Most of the students used toothpaste to brush their teeth and they used fluoride containing toothpaste. Mean DMFT of the students considered low.

Study Limitation

The survey was conducted in only two urban secondary schools and among students aged 15 years. In Bangladesh, many urban adolescents do not go to school. As the survey represents only school going youth, it does not report the true

picture of tooth brushing practice in the urban community as a whole. The sample size of 116 is not sufficient for all kinds of sub-group analysis and statistical tests.

References

- The health and Social Care Information Centre. Annual Report and Accounts 2011/2012. Retrieved 19 April 2014.
- Moynihan P and Petersen PE; Diet, Nutrition and Prevention of Dental Diseases. Public Health Nutrition 2004; 7(1A): 201-26.
- Kidd AM J-B; Essentials for Dental Caries: The disease and its Management. 3rd ed. Oxford: Oxford University Press; 2005.
- http://www.codental.uobaggdad.edu.iq/uploads/ lectures/communitydentistry/Indices. Access date 25/07/2015
- The journal of ADA, April 2002, Volume133, Issue 4: 404-527.
- http://www.wikitravel.org/en/sylhet. Access date 25/07/2015
- http://www.londoni.co/index.php/travel-guide? id=3 Access Date 25/07/2015
- Petersen PE, Bourgeois D and Hiroshi O; The Global Burden of Oral Diseases and Risks to oral Health. Bull World Health Organ 2005; 66L-9
- WHO Information Series on School Health Document Eleven.
 Oral Health Promotion: An essential element of a health promoting school, Geneva, 2003.
- Kwan SY, Petersen PE, Pine CM and Borutta A; Health Promoting School: An opportunity for oral health promotion. Bull World Health Organ 2005; 83:67785.
- Miah MNA, Mia AQ, Haque MM and Singha RK; Tooth Brushing Practice Among Bangladeshi Rural Adolescents. Medicine Today, 2011; 23(2):72-75.
- Petersen PE, Bourgeois D, Ogawa H, Estupinan-Day S and Ndiaye C; The Global Burden of Oral Diseases and Risks to Oral Health. Bull World Health Organ, 2005; 83 (9): 661-66.
- Dean JA, Huges CV; Mechanical and chemotherapeutic home oral hygiene. In Dean JA, Avery DR, McDonald and Avery Dentistry for the child and adolescent. 9th ed. Maryland Heights, Mo: Mosby Elsevier; 2011: 205-22.
- Smyth E, Caamano F and Femandez-Riveiro P; Oral Health Knowlwdge, Attitudes and Practice in 12 years old school children. Med Oral Pathol Oral Cir Bucal, 2007; 12(8):614-620.
- http:://www.who.int/nutrition/topics/p_population_2008 Access Date 25/07/2015
- Lian CW, Phing TS, Chat CS, Shine BC, Hahauddin LH, Zhuleikha BJ; Oral Health Knowledge, attitude and Practice among Secondary School Students in Kuching, Sarawak. Archivs of Orofacial Science 2010; 5 (1): 9-16.

A Survey on Prevalance of Common Dental Problems among Patients Attending Dentistry OPD at Cox's Bazar medical college hospital

M N Kabir¹, MB Ahmed², M Khan³

Abstract

Background: Oral health of the populations is increasingly becoming important both in developed as well as developing countries. With rapid changes in the lifestyle related behaviors including diet it is important to study the occurrence of common dental problems presented to the dental OPD. Objective: The objectives of this study were to identify the common dental problem for assessing the level of knowledge regarding dental care practices among the respondents. Materials and methods: This descriptive cross sectional hospital based survey was carried out to know prevalance of various dental diseases in patients who visited department of Dentistry at Cox's Bazar medical college hospital. They were examined and history as well as clinical findings. Recorded data was entered and analyzed in Microsoft excel. Results and conclusions: The patients ranged from 4 to 80 years in age with equal numbers from both genders. It was found that prevalance of Dental caries and a periodontal disease was highest amongst all dental diseases. It was also noted that more patients delayed seeking treatment till caries involved pulp. Requirement of preventive care is stressed.

Key Words: Common Dental Problems, OPD at Cox's Bazaar, Bangladesh.

J Cont Dent Sci 2018;6(2):14-17

Introduction

The achievements in the field of oral healthcare in the world are many, yet oral health remains one of the major health problems both in developed as well as developing countries. The impact of the oral health problems is not limited to only pain and suffering but goes to extend of impairment of the function and affection on the quality of life of people affected. Also there is association of the some dental health problems with systemic diseases like non-communicable diseases which are increasing globally including in Bangladesh. These dental problems also share importance of oral health WHO celebrated world health day in the year 1995 with the theme 'Oral Health for Healthy life'.

1. Dr. Mohammad Nazmul Kabir BDS, DDS, BCS (Health), Assistant Professor, Department Dentistry, Cox's Bazar Medical College, Cox's Bazar.

- 2. Dr. Md. Bashir Ahmed, BDS, BCS (Health), Dental surgeon, 250 bed district sadar hospital, Cox's bazar.
- 3. Dr. Mahbuba Khan, Private Practitioner, Popular Mouchak Hospital, Gazipur.

Address of Correspondence

Dr. Mohammad Nazmul Kabir BDS, DDS, BCS (Health), Assistant Professor, Department Dentistry, Cox's Bazar Medical College, Cox's Bazar. E-mail: drmdnazmulkabir@gmail.com Cell: 01712776618

The oral health has not gained much attention of public health policy makers and it still remains a neglected area in public health policy. The rapid change in the eating behavior which has come with globalization and free market economy perpetuated with continued and increasing use of tobacco and related products has large adverse effects on the oral health of populations. To add to this the lack of resources in developing county like Bangladesh there is a larger need to focus on the oral healthcare of the Bangladeshi population.

This paper focuses specifically on the distribution of Common dental problems among the patients presenting to this dental OPD.

Materials and Methods

Study design: The design for the current study was a descriptive cross-sectional hospital based survey.

Study participants: The new patients attending dentistry OPD were requested to participate in the study and reply to the questions mentioned in survey sheet. Old patients were excluded to avoid duplication.

Study period: The study participants were recruited over a period of 1 month during mid-January to mid February.

Sample size: It was estimated to recruit 250 patients in the study looking at the patient load in the OPD of the hospital. Thus, the intended sample size was 250 patients.

Data collection method: It was a questionnaire based survey which was in two parts: Part 1: demographic details of the study participants. This was obtained primarily from their hospital case records and verified by interview of the patients. Part 2: Clinical information. This was filled at the end of consultation and treatment process for each patient. To ensure quality these participant questionnaires were filled by the treating dental surgeons themselves.

Study variables: Apart from the primary variables to understand the demographic profile of the study participants the main variables under study were: 1. the presenting dental problem 2. Systemic co-morbid conditions (if any) 3. Treatment modalities offered to these patients.

Data management and Statistical analysis: The data thus collected were entered and analyzed in Microsoft Office Excel. The study reports proportions of the variables under study in percentages. This being a descriptive study no statistical significance tests were applied.

Ethical issues: The study protocol was cleared through the local Institutional Ethic Committee of the institute. Informed consent was taken from the participants. The participants were informed that their participation in the study will be anonymous, voluntary and not compulsory. They were assured about anonymity and confidentiality of the information provided. This study being a descriptive study there was no intervention involved. Hence, there was less than minimal risk to the participants. Benefit to participants are indirect, as the results of the study may help in planning for providing better dental treatment to society in future.

Results

At the end of data collection, the study obtained information from a total of 258 participants from the dental OPD. Following is the narrative of the study results.

Table 1: Demographic profile of study participants (n=258)

Study variable	Number (%)
Gender	
Male	129 (50)
Female	129 (50)
Age (years)	
1-10	12 (4.6)
11-20	22 (8.5)
21-30	5119.7)
3140	61 (23.6)
41-50	43 (16.6)
5160	39 (15.1)
61-70	17 (6.5)
71-80	12 (4.6)

Table 1: shows the distribution of male and female patients in the dental OPD. It shows equal number of male and female patients who visited the dental OPD for their various dental problems. Majority of patients were of young age group with 30-40 age with 23.6% followed by 21-30 age group 19.7%, 41-50 age group with 16.6% and 51-60 age group 15.1%.

Table 2: various dental conditions observed in study population (n=258)

Dental condition	Number(%)
Gingivitis	32 (12.4)
Periodontitis	54 (20.9)
Dental Caries without pulpal involvement	28 (10.8)
Dental Caries with pulpal involvement	116 (44.9)
Dentinal Sensitivity	22 (8.5)
Impacted lower third molar	7 (2.7)
Impacted upper third molar	3 (1.1)
Oral Sub mucous Fibrosis	3 (1.1)
Trigeminal Neuralgia	1 (0.3)
Malocclusion causing facial disfigurement	6 (2.3)
Any other	30 (11.6)

Table 2: shows the distribution of various dental problems seen in dental OPD. As is evident from the table dental caries comes out as the most common dental problem constituting almost 56% of the total patients studied. It is important to note here that majority of these patients were having severe form of the caries with pulpal involvement. Second common condition was Periodontitis which was found in around one fifth of the study participants. Third important dental condition was gingivitis afflicting approximately 12% of the study participants. Dental sensitivity was the fourth major problem encountered in this study. Each of the other problems like impacted upper and lower third molars, trigeminal neuralgia, malocclusion and oral submucus fibrosis were seen with less than 10 % cases.

Our study proforma expected other two conditions also which was not presented by any patient during the data collection period. Fluorsis was one such condition. There were no impacted tooth reported apart from the upper and lower third molars.

Table 3: various treatment methods offered (n=258)

Treatment offered	Number (%)
Scaling	64 (24.8)
Periodontal surgery	17 (6.5)
Restoration	31 (12)
Endodontic Treatment	62 (24)
Extraction of tooth	97 (37.7)
Removal of impacted tooth	9 (3.4)
Other surgical treatment	6 (2.3)
Prosthodontic treatment	68 (26.3)
Orthodontic Treatment	6 (2.3)
Only medicines	23 (8.9)
Any other	4 (1.5)

Table 3: shows various dental treatment modalities that were offered to patients visiting dental OPD. It shows that extraction of teeth, scaling and endodontic treatment are the treatments which are given in majority of cases. Other treatments like periodontal surgeries, removal of impacted teeth, restoration, prosthodontics treatment, orthodontic

treatment and other surgical procedures were also given. Extraction of teeth was done in cases of grossly carious teeth which cannot be saved by endodontic treatment and for root pieces were teeth cannot be saved and is a source of infection in oral cavity. Scaling was done for the problems such as gingivitis and localised periodontitis. Endodontic treatment was offered for problems like dental caries with pulpal involvement where teeth can be saved by root canal treatment. For periodontitis periodontal surgeries were done. For impacted molars disimpaction was 'done and _ for malocclusion orthodontic treatment was given. Prosthodontics treatment was given in those patients who required full crowns.

Discussion

While providing health care to society, it is important to have an idea about prevalence of various diseases, need of treatment, and perception of the diseases and treatments by public; and peoples' awareness for hygiene.

A survey helps us to know these things. A survey about various commonly occurring dental diseases and conditions, to know how frequently they are seen in new patients who attend Dentistry OPD at Cox's Bazar Medical College hospital.

Our study shows that there is equal predilection for male and female that visited the dental OPD for various dental problems. Study conducted by Ami M Maru, Sena Narendran, did not observe any significant gender differences in either caries prevalence or severity, and thus confirmed the findings by Shah.⁴

Oral health is an important component of general health, with dental caries affecting a person's ability to eat, speak or socialize. Our study shows that majority of patients were of young age group and major problem encountered was dental caries which is similar to the results shown by WHO prevalence of dental caries in the age-group of 35-44 years in the present study was found to be 82.4%, which is lower than that reported in the WHO Oral Health Country Profile (94%). However, the results were found to be higher than that found in a study conducted by Doifode et al

in Nagpur (48.6%) in the same age-group and by Chakraborty et al. in Siliguri (57.03%) in the age-group of 35-40 years.5 Many studies have shown that the prevalence of periodontal diseases is high in their studies which is similar to our result that shows the prevalence of periodontal problems is high compared to other problems.6 Dentinal hypersensitivity is challenging condition for patients to explain and for dentists to precisely diagnose.7 Our study shows that after dental caries and periodontal problems dentinal hypersensitivity was third major problem seen. A study by Jagjit Singh Dhaliwal et al has found that the total prevalence of dentine hypersensitivity was 48.9% in the questionnaire group and 25% in the oral testing group 8 which does not correlate with our study. Many surveys have been carried out by different investigators about incidence of dental diseases. But it was seen that most of them did a survey in institutionalized groups of subjects e.g. school children, juvenile homes, orphanages, old age homes and so on. This study encompassed subjects from all ages.

Also it was seen that most of the surveys considered only a particular disease or condition, e.g. Dental caries, periodontal diseases etc. This study took into account most of the common dental diseases and conditions.

One of the limitations of our study is that this being a hospital based study we cannot comment on the prevalence or incidence of the dental problems in the populations. However in absence of population based surveys the hospital based data is the best alternative to reflect the prevailing dental health problems in the community of the catchment area of the tertiary care hospital where this study was conducted.

The dental OPD where this study was conducted is primarily situated in an urban area. Yet the study investigators have observed that the OPD caters to an equal number of patients both from rural as well as urban area. Since we could not collect the data on residence of the study participants hence we cannot comment on difference between the

occurrences of the various dental problems in urban versus rural area. Geographic location segregated data would have enabled us to comment on this important aspect.

Conclusion

Thus, it can be said that dental caries with or without pulpal involvement, periodontitis, gingivitis and dentinal hypersensitivity are major problems which are seen in dental OPD. These findings will give direction to the prevention efforts towards the common dental problems in the catchment population of the study hospital.

References

- What is the burden of oral disease? World health organization. http://www.who.int/oral_health/disease
 - _burden/global/en/
- National Oral Health Care Programme, Ministry of Health and family Welfare. available from http://www.aiims.edu/aiims/ events/dent alworkshop/nohe-prog.htm
- Shaju JP, Zade RM, Das Manas. Prevalence of periodontitis in the Indian population: A literature review J Indian Soc Periodontol. 2011 Jan-Mar; 15(1): 29-34.:
- Maru AM, Narendran S. Epidemiology dental caries among adults in a riral area in India. The Journal of Contemporary Dental Practice, May-June 2012; 13(3):382-388
- Patro BK, Ravi Kumar B, Goswami A, Mathur VP, Nongkynrih B. Prevalence of dental caries among adults and elderly in an urban resettlement colony of New Delhi. Indian J Dent Res 2008;19:95-8
- Agarwal V, Khatri M, Singh G, Gupta G, Marya CM, Kumar V. Prevalence of Periodontal Diseses in India. J Oral Health Comm Dent 2010;4(Spl)7-16
- Rane P, Pujari S, Patel P, Gandhewar M, Madria K, Dhume S. Epidemiological Study to Evaluate the Prevalence of Dentine Hypersensitivity among Patients. J Int Oral Health 2013; 5(5):15-9.
- Dhaliwal JS, Palwankar P, Khinda PK, Sodhi SK. Prevalence of dentine hypersensitivity: A Cross-sectional study in rural punjabi indians. J indian Soc Periodontol. 2012 Jul-Sep; 16(3) 426-42.

Item Analysis of MCQ, Part of An assessment Tool Evaluation H Rekha¹, S Gazi², M Asadullah³

Abstract

Introduction: MCQs are used mostly for comprehensive assessment at the end of academic sessions and provide feedback to the teachers on their educational actions. Objective: Keeping the importance of MCQ Item analysis measure the students' responses to individuals test items to assess the quality of these test items and to create a question bank for avoiding repetition in future. Methods and Materials: The study was conducted on 134 Third year MBBS Community Medicine students who appeared in first term examinations in October 2017. It comprised of 20 "Multiple true-false response" MCQ Each item was analyzed for Difficulty Index and Discrimination Index. After evaluation of class test, marks obtained by the students were arranged in descending order and entered in SPSS 19. Results: Mean difficulty index (dfi) was 29.89 ± 16.68 while mean Discrimination index was 1.37 ± 4.16 . Level of significance (2-tailed test) is significant in dfi (p = .000). But di was not-significant (p = > .05). Each question contains highest value (1) and lowest value (0). Of the total 20 items, the total mean score (\pm SD) of the students were 14.33/20. Conclusion: MCQ items that demonstrate good discrimination tend to be in the moderately easy to moderately difficult range. Also the items that are in the moderately difficult to very difficult range are more likely to show negative discrimination.

Key Words: Multiple Choice Questions, MCQ, Difficulty Index (dfi), Discrimination Index (di)

J Cont Dent Sci 2018;6(2):18-21

Introduction

Multiple choice questions (MCQs) are frequently used to assess students in different educational streams for objectivity and wide reach of coverage in less time. MCQs are used mostly for comprehensive assessment at the end of academic sessions and provide feedback to the teachers on their educational actions.1 These can be used for both formative and summative assessments. Framing of good MCQs is a time-consuming and a challenging process. It is said that appropriately constructed MCQs result in objective testing that measure knowledge, comprehension, application, analysis, and evaluation.2 In simple terms, it is a process of collecting, summarizing, and using information from students' responses to assess the quality of test items. It includes parameters such as Difficulty Index (dfi), Discrimination Index (di), and Distracter Efficiency (de).³ Keeping the importance of MCQ Item analysis measure the students' responses to individuals test items to assess the quality of these test items and to create a question bank for avoiding repetition in the future.

Methods and Materials

The study was conducted on 134 Third year MBBS Community Medicine students who appeared in first term examinations in October 2017. It comprised of 20 'Multiple true/false response' MCQs. The examination time was 20 minutes and marks allotted were 20. All MCQs had a single stem with five options or responses. Each correct response was awarded 0.2 marks and each incorrect response was awarded 0, range of score being 0-1. There was no negative marking and the passing mark was 60%. Each item was analyzed for Difficulty index and Discrimination index. After evaluation of the class test, the marks obtained by the students were arranged in descending order and entered in SPSS 19. The higher scoring students (27%) were considered as high achievers (H) and lower scoring students (27%) as low achievers (L). For computation purpose, marks obtained by middle one-third were discarded. Each item was analyzed for two parameters, the difficulty index and discrimination index.

Address of Correspondence

Husneara Rekha, MBBS, MPH, MMEd, Assistant Professor, Community Medicine, Enam Medical College and Hospital, Email: husneararekha@gmail.com, Tel: 880 1714262210

Husneara Rekha, MBBS, MPH, MMEd, Assistant Professor, Community Medicine, Enam Medical College and Hospital

Sumi Gazi, BDS, MSc, MMEd, Senior Lecurer, Medical Education Unit, and Hospital Coordinator, Sapporo Dental College and Hospital, Dhaka

Dr Md. Asadullah, Associate Professor, Orthopedics, Community Medicine, Enam Medical College and Hospital

Difficulty index

It is the percentage of students in high and low achievers group who answered the item correctly. The range was from 0% and 100%. It was calculated using the formula DIF = H + L x 100/N; where, H = number of students answering the item correctly in the high achieving group, L = number of students answering the item correctly in the low achieving group, and N = total number of students in the two groups (including non-responder). The difficulty index for the question as a whole is indicated for the mean score for that question.

Table 1. Interpretation of difficulty index:

Cutoff points	Interpretation	Action
>70%	Relatively easy	Revise/ discard
<30%	Indicates relatively difficult	Discard
30-70%	acceptable	Store

Discrimination index or d value:

DI is the ability of an item to differentiate between students of higher and lower abilities and ranges between 0 and 1. It was calculated using the formula DI = 2 x (H-L)/N where, the symbols H, L, and N represent the same values as mentioned above. Results of DI were interpreted as shown in Table 2.

Table 2: Interpretation of discrimination index

Cutoff point	Interpretation	Action
> 0.35	excellent	store
0.25to 0.34	good	store
0.2 to 0.24	acceptable	store
<0.2	very poor	requiremodification

Statistical analysis

All analyses were performed by using SPSS version 19.

Difficulty index is defined as the percentage of those candidates recording either a true or false

response for a particular branch in a multiple true-false response MCQ who gave the correct response. The optimal range is 0 - 1%. A low index may mean that students are attempting the item but are getting it wrong and a too high index may mean that regardless of how poor or how good the questions are, the students are able to get it correct. In this study, the difficulty index was determined by the percentage of students high and low achievers group who answered the item fully correct (1), partially correct (0.2 - 0.8), and totally incorrect (0).

Discrimination index is a measure, of how the 'good' students are doing versus the 'poor' students on a particular question. Knowing this, we expect the value of the discrimination index to range between 1 to 0. Meaning that all 'good' students are correct versus no 'poor' students are correct by the former method or the maximum value for a positive correlation by the latter method.

Discrimination index of 0.35 and higher is considered as very good items, 0.25 - 0.34 is reasonably good, and 0.2 - 0.24 are marginal items (i.e. subject to improvement).

All data are reported as mean - SD of n items. The relationship between the item discrimination index and difficulty index values for the test paper was determined using one sample t-test. The P value of <0.05 was considered to indicate statistical significance.

Results and Discussion

The study was conducted on 134 Third year MBBS Community Medicine students, where the higher scoring students (27%) were considered as high achievers (H) and the lower scoring students (27%) as the low achievers (L). We calculated this from two groups of a total of 72 students. For computation purpose, marks obtained by middle one-third were discarded. Each item was analyzed for two parameters, the difficulty index and discrimination index.

Table 3: Mean of Difficulty index (Dfi) and Discrimination Index (Di)

		One -Samp	le Statistics		
	N	Mean	Std. Deviation	Sig. (2-tailed)	Std.Error Mean
dfi	20	29.89	16.68	.000	3.72990
di_	20	1.37	4.16	.157	.93132

In Table 3 mean difficulty index (dfi) was 29.89±16.68 while mean Discrimination index was 1.37±4.16. The level of significance (2-tailed test) is significant in dfi (p=.000). But di is not significant (p= >.05). Each question contains the highest value (1) and lowest value (0). Of total 20 items, the mean score (±SD) of the students were 14.33/20. Difficult indices of 11 questions (55%) of the MCQ items were acceptable (p= 30 - 70%), only 9 (45%) of MCQs were difficult (p= <30%). There were no easy questions (p= >70%). The Discrimination indices of 11 (55%) MCQ (Question Numbers 1,2,3,7,10,11, 12, 13, 16 and 19) was >0.35, these were excellent. Only in 2 MCQ (Question number 17 and 9) the di was 0.25-0.34 (only 10%) these were good questions. The discrimination index of only one question 5% (question number 6) was 0.2-0.24. This was acceptable. There were 30% questions with poor di (for example Question number 4, 5, 8, 14, 15, and 20). There, the di was < 0.2. In Question number 4, the di was -0.06, this question was too difficult or poorly constructed.

The effective measurement of knowledge acquired is an important component of medical education. The MCQ form is an useful assessment tool in measuring factual recall and if carefully constructed can test higher order of thinking skills which is very important for a medical graduate. The method of assessment should be regularly evaluated. It is important to evaluate MCQ items to see how effective they are in assessing the knowledge of students.4

Review of the individual question is most important. If a test or a question paper contains substantial number of poorly constructed questions, it would be reflected in a review of test as a whole. On the other hand, when only a small number of questions are poorly constructed, the review of the test will not be useful. Hence individual questions should also be reviewed

The basic purpose of the methods is to give a numerical value to the relationship between scores for the total MCQ test and the score for a single item. Although there are various similar ways of calculating the discrimination index, here, the researcher used the simplified technique of selecting the upper and lower 27% student, which have been demonstrated by Kelly⁵ to be the most efficient fraction.

It is important to understand that although very difficult or easy items will have low ability to discriminate, such items are often needed to adequately sample course content and objectives. Further, an item may show low discrimination if the test covers a wide range of content areas at different taxonomic levels of cognitive skills. This is very much a case with Community Medicine curriculum.6

It has to be remembered that the difficulty index not only reflects the attributes of a question, but also reflects the ability of the group responding to the question. Difficult indices of 11 (55%) MCQ items were acceptable (p=30-70%), only 9 (45%) of MCQs were difficult (p= <30%). There were no easy questions (p=>70%).

The reasons for poor discrimination index would include, these questions had too easy or too difficult or not pertaining to the syllabus. The Question numbers 4, 5, 8, 14, 15, and 20 had a di of < 0.2. The question number 4 had a di was -0.06. So this question is too difficult or poorly constructed. These questions need modification.

The findings of this study showed that substantial number of questions were difficult (question numbers 4,5,6,8,12,14,15 and 17). So in the future we need to select MCQ items deliberately, on which our students appeared to consistently better perform in this assessment methods compared to the SAQs and OSPEs methods.

This part of assessment tool is very important because its objectivity is very high due to absence of bias, its content validity is more and its reliability is high.

Based on the end-of-course self-evaluation by the students, time does not seem to be the major factor for the poorer performance in the MCQ test. The importance of evaluating assessment has been highlighted by Fowell and coworkers, who noted that when devising suitable assessment systems, this step of the assessment cycle is often omitted. And yet most medical educators involved in curriculum planning and development recognize the interplay between assessment and learning, and that to a large extent assessment drives learning.⁷

Conclusion

MCQ items that demonstrate good discrimination tend to be in the moderately easy to moderately difficult range. On the other hand, items that are in the moderately difficult to very difficult range are more likely to show negative discrimination. The wide scatter of discrimination needs further investigation, and before we discard an MCQ for poor discrimination, we must first look into the factor(s) that may contribute to such poor discrimination.

References

- Rao C, Prasad HLK, Sajitha K, Permi H, Jayaprakash Shetty J.
 'Item analysis of multiple choice questions: Assessing an assessment tool in medical students'. Int J Health Sci Res. 2016;2 (4): 201-204
- Kaur M, Singla S, Mahajan R. 'Item analysis of in use multiple choice questions in pharmacology'. Int J Health Sci Res.2016; 6(3): 170-173. doi: 10.4103/2229-516X.186965.
- Mehta G, Mokhasi V. 'Item analysis of multiple choice questions'. An assessment of the assessment tool'. Int J Health Sci Res. 2014;4:197-202.
- Pande SS, Pande SR, Parate VR, Nikam AP, Agrekar SH. Correlation between difficulty and discrimination indices of MCQ's in formative exam in physiology. South East Asian J Med Educ 2013;7:45-50.
- Kelley TL. The selection of upper and lower groups for the validation of test items. J Educ Psychol 1939;30:17-24.

- Chavda P, Misra S, Duttaroy B. 'Item Analysis of Multiple Choice Questions based Undergraduate Assessment in Community Medicine 'South East Asian Journ al of Medical Education
- Sim S, Rasiah RI. Relationship Between Item Difficulty and Discrimination Indices in True/False- Type Multiple Choice Questions of a Para-clinical Multidisciplinary Paper , Vol. 35 No. 2

Non-Alcoholic Fatty Liver disease in Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus CS Bose¹, M Sarker²

Abstract

Background: Non alcoholic fatty liver disease (NAFLD) has emerged as the most common cause of chronic liver disease worldwide. Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus (T2DM) is a risk factor for progressive liver disease and mortality in patients with NAFID, whereas NAFID is a marker of cardiovascular risk and mortality in patients with T2DM. Hence, the diagnosis and evaluation of fatty liver is an important part of management of diabetes. Objective: This study was conducted to determine anthropometric and metabolic parameters in diabetic patients with NAFLD. Anthropometric and metabolic parameters in diabetic patients with fatty liver were compared with diabetic patients without fatty liver. Methods: This case control study was conducted on 256 patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus attending Bangladesh Institute of Research and Rehabilitation in Diabetes. Endocrine and Metabolic Disorders (BIRDEM). A total of 127 diabetic patients with fatty liver were considered as casses and 120 diabetic patients without fatty liver considered as controls. History and thorough clinical examination including anthropometry waisi hip ratio and body mass index (BMI) and lab investigations were done. Ultrasound abdomen was done to detect fatty liver. Anthropometric and metabolic parameters in diabetic patients with fatty liver were compared with diabetic patients without fatty liver Results: In our study diabetic patients with fatty liver had high body mass index (BMI), elevated SGPT SGOT ratio 1 when compared to diabetic patients without fatty liver. This was found to be statistically significant (p<0.021) Conclusion: BMI would act as early anthropometric indicators in prediction of NAFLD in type 2 diabetic patients. SGPT/SGOT ratio could act as biochemical marker for prediction of development of fatty liver in diabetic patients.

Key Words: Non-alcoholic fatty liver disease (NAFLD), Type-2 Diabetes Mellitus, body mass index (BMI)

J Cont Dent Sci 2018;6(2): 22-24

Introduction

Non-alcoholic fatty liver disease has emerged as the most common cause of chronic liver disease worldwide. It can lead to hepatocellular carcinoma and is an impendent determinant of cardiovasculardisease (CVD). NAFLD is therefore a complex problem with implications far beyond the liver.

Type 2 DM increases the risk of liver-related death by up to 22-fold in patients with NAFLD.³ In patients with Type 2 diabetes, the prevalence of NAFLD is as high as 75%.⁴ Diabetes mellitus is frequently observed in patients with NAFLD, being present in 18-45% of cases.^{5,6} Type 2 DM is a risk factor for progressive liver disease and mortality in patients with NAFLD. Whereas NAFLD is a marker of cardiovascular risk and mortality in patients with diabetes. Hence, the diagnosis and evaluation of fatty liver is an important part of management of diabetes.

We conducted a study to determine the anthropometric and metabolic parameters in NAFLD patients with type 2 diabetes.

Anthropometric and metabolic parameters in diabetic with fatty liver were compared with diabetic patients without fatty liver.

Materials and Methods

This observational case-control study was conducted at BIRDEM from January 2016 to June 2016.

The study subjects were 256 patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus. Of them, 127 are diabetic patients who had fatty liver and 129 are diabetic patients without fatty liver. Written informed consent was taken from all the study subjects. Patients consuming alcohol, patients with congestive cardiac failure and renal failure, patients on hepato-toxic drugs, patients with history of extensive small bowel resection and patients or insulin are excluded from the study.

Address of Correspondence:

Dr. Chandra Shekhar Bose, MPH. MBBS, Associate Professor, Department of Community Medicate, Kumudini Women's Medical College, Mirzapur, Tangaril E-mail: chandrashekhor99@gmail.com

Dr. Chandra Shekhor Bosc, MBBS, MPH, Associate Professor, Department of Community Medicine, Kumudini Women's Medical College, Mirzapur, Tangail.

Dr. Moushami Sarker, MBBS, M.Phil (Microbiology), Assistant Professor, Department of Microbiology, Mugda Medical College and Hospital, Dhaka

Anthropometry (waist hip ratio and BMI) were done to 256 patients.

HbAlc (%), Uric acid (mg%), serum SGPT, serum SGOT were done for all patients.

USG of abdomen was done to detect fatty liver.

Anthropometric and biochemical parameters in

diabetic patients with fatty liver were compared
with diabetic patients without fatty liver.

Statistical Methods

Statistical analysis was done by comparing diabetic patients with fatty liver and diabetic patients without fatty liver. Unpaired student's T test was done and p<0.05 was considered to be significant.

Results

A total of 256 patients participated in the study. Data of 127 diabetic patients with fatty liver was compared with 129 diabetic patients without fatty liver.

Demographic profile: Mean age of T2DM with fatty liver and T2DM without fatty liver was 43.33-6.36 years and 42.89-5.85 years respectively. The value did not show any statistically significant difference (p=0.559). There were 15 males and 112 females in the group of T2DM with fatty liver; and 31 males and 98 were females in T2DM without fatty liver respectively.

Table 1: Comparison of anthropometric variables in diabetic patients with and without fatty liver

Anthropometr ic Variables	Diabetic patients with fatty liver (Cases) (Mean-SD)	Diabetic patients without fatty liver . (Controls.) (Mean - SD)	'p' value
Weight(kg)	68.9-11.11	66.92-7.85	0.511
Height (cm)	160.26- 13.54	167.85- 9.55	0.037
Waist Hip ratio	0.923060	0.918074	0.589
BMI(kg/m ²)	26.19- 3.69	25.32- 3.47	0.053

In Diabetic patients with fatty liver Mean BMI was 26.19 - 3.69(kg/m2); mean waist hip ratio was

0.93 - 0.162. Waist hip ratio was normal in 60% of the cases.

In Diabetic patients without fatty liver mean BMI was 25.32- 3.47(kg/m2); mean waist hip ratio was 0.918 - 0.074. hip ratio was normal in all controls.

Comparison of Biochemical Parameters:

Diabetic patients with fatty liver SGPT/SGOT ratio was >1 in 60% of the cases.

Diabetic patients without fatty liver SGPT/SGOT ratio>l was seen in only 20% of controls.

Table 2: Comparison of biochemical variables in diabetic patients with and without fatty liver.

Biochemical parameters	Diabetic patients with fatty liver (Mean -SD)	Diabetic patients without fatty liver (Mean -SD)	'p' value
SGPT/SGOT ratio > 1	1.01-289	0.835-0.148	0.021
Uric acid (mg%)	6.39-1.181	3.7-1	0.001
HbAlc (%)	9.46-4.66	7.6- 0.76	0.211

Table 2 shows that Mean SGPT/SGOT ratio among Diabetic patients with fatty liver was 1.01-.289 and in Diabetic patients without fatty liver 0.835-0.148. Mean of uric acid, level was 6.39-1.181 mg% in Diabetic patients with fatty liver and in Diabetic patients without fatty liver 3.7-1 mg%; Mean HbAlc (%) was 9.46-4.66% among Diabetic patients with fatty liver and 7.6-0.76% in Diabetic patients without fatty liver. Statistically significant difference was found among the means of SGPT/SGOT ratio and Uric acid (mg%) of the Diabetic patients without fatty liver and Diabetic patients without fatty liver (p= 0.021 and p=0.001 respectively).

Discussion

In our study, we found that anthropometric parameters like BMI and SGPT/SGOT ratio > 1 are risk to develop NAFLD. In our study, SGPT/SGOT ratio > 1 was associated with increased incidence of fatty liver thereby implying its role as a screening test in detection of fatty liver.

Obesity and in particular central obesity has been described as one of the strongest risk factors for NAFLD and fibrosis, with NASH (Non Alcoholic Steatohepatitis) being prevalent in 18.5% of the obese patients. Goland et al showed that patients with NAFLD had a significantly higher BML In our study BMI was high in diabetic patient with NAFLD thereby implying role of abdominal obesity and hence BMI in pathogenesis of fatty liver in diabetic patients and need of weight control in these patients.

NAFLD is commonly characterized by elevated levels of markers of liver injury like SGPT and SGOT. Of these liver enzymes, SGPT is most closely related to liver fat accumulation, and is often used in epidemiological studies as a surrogate marker for NAFLD.¹⁰ It is now clearly known that the whole spectrum of histological findings of fatty liver and NASH may exist without elevation of transaminases.¹¹ In our study 60% of diabetic patients with fatty liver had SGPT/SGOT ratio was>1. The ratio of SGPT/SGOT is usually less than 1 in patients who have either no or minimal fibrosis, although this ratio may be greater than 1 with the development of cirrhosis.¹²

We found that there was no statistical correlation of HBAlc with NAFLD, reason for this observation could be due to the smaller sample size.

In our study of NAFLD, according to Williamson et al independent predictors of NAFLD in diabetic patients are BMI, HbAlc.¹³

Our study had some limitations. The important limitation of this study is that subjects did not have a liver biopsy and histological examination, which is the gold standard technique for identifying the status.

Conclusion:

Increased BMI would act as early anthropometric indicators in prediction of NAFLD and SGPT/SGOT ratio > 1 is a risk to develop NAFLD in type 2 diabetic patients.

References

- Bellentani S, Mefino M. Epidemiology and natural history of non-alcoholic fatty liver disease (NAFLD). Ann Hepato 2006 85: 458.
- Targher G, Day CB, Bonora E. Risk of cardiovascular disease in patients with nonalcoholic fatty liver disease. N Engl J Med 2010, 363:134-150.
- Younossi M, Gramlich T, Metteoni CA, Boparai N. Mc Cullough. Nonalcoholic fatty liver disease in patients with type 2 diabetics. Clinical Gastroenterology and Hepatology 2004;2:26-65.
- Angulo P. Nonalcoholic fatty liver disease. N Engl J Med 2002; 346:122-131.
- Browning JD, Szczepaniak LS, Dobbins R, Nuremberg P, Horton JD, Cohen J C, et al. Prevalence of Hepatic Steatosis in an urban population in the United States: impect of ethnicity Hepatology 2004;40:1387-95
- Weston SR, Leyden W, Murphy R, Bass NM, Bell BP. Menos MM. Racial and ethnic distribution of nonalcoholic fatty liver in persons with newly diagnosed Chronic liver disease, Hepatology 2005,41372-79.
- Ludwig J. Viggano TR, McGill D. Nonalcoholic steatohepatitis. Mayo clinic pros. 55:434-38
- Ajaga S. Review on nonalcoholic fatty liver disease. Gestonology 2002:123:1705-25.
- Goland S, Shimoni S. Zomitzki. Knobler H. Azoulai O. Lutaty Grt alcarilac menifestations- A new manifestation of NAFLD. Journal clinical Gastroenterology 2006; 40: 949-55
- Gupte P, Amarapurker D, Agal S. Baijal R, Kulshreshtta P. Pramik S, et al. Nonalcoholic steatohepatitis in T2DM. J Gastroenterol 2004:19: 854-8
- Angulo P, Keach JC, Batts KP, Lindor KD. Independent predictors of liver fibrosis in patients with nonalcoholic steatohepatitis. Hepatology 1999; 30:1356-62
- Ruhl CE, Everhart JE. Elevated serum alanine amino transferase and gamma glutamyltransferase and mortality in the United States population. Gastroenterology 2009; 136:477 - 85
- Willamson RM, Price JF, Glancy S, Nee LD, Hayes PC et al. Prevalence of and drink facers for hepatic striated and nonalcoholic fatty liver disease in people with type 2 diabetic. The Edinburgh type 2 Diabetic sentry disease care 2011; 34:1139-64.

Reveise Article

An Overview on Protocol For Periodontal Therapy JU Mahmood 1

Abstract Appearant and Periodontal diseases involve gum and supporting structure of teeth and oral mucosa. Poor oral hygiene loading to pain and inflammation of periodontium, and eventual loosening of teeth has profound effect on systemic and merall health. Advance periodontitis is a leading cause of tooth loss which effect function and esthetics. A review on grailable protocol on periodontal therapy was carried out through this paper.

Key words: Gingivitis, Periodontitis, Oral hygiene

J Cont Dent Sci 2018;6(2): 25-29

Introduction

Periodontics deals with oral health care, prevention, diagnosis and treatment of diseases of the supporting and surrounding tissues of teeth and dental implants. Periodontal diseases involve the diseases of gum and supporting structures of teeth and oral mucosa. Periodontic-endodontic lesions management and tooth replacement by placing dental implants are close components of comprehensive periodontal therapy. Periodontal diseases associated linked to systemic disease e,g, cardiovascular, respiratory, renal failure, diabetes and inflammation in the body 12 Laser with particular wavelength has role in periodontal therapy.

Research on mechanism of periodontal disease initiation, progression and pathogenesis have helped do draw protocols for definite and effective periodontal therapy.3-8 With proper professional treatment, effective plaque control and continuing oral hygiene care, the patients can retain their dentition throughout their life effectively.9-12 Nevertheless, in some advanced periodontal disease tooth loss is inevitable.

Address of Correspondence

Dr. Jalal Uddin Mahmood, BDS, DDS, MCPS, Ph D, Professor and Head, Department of Periodontology and Oral Pathology, Dhaka Dental College, Bangladesh, Email: jalalmahmood@hotmail.com

The purpose of periodontal therapy is to preserve healthy natural dentition, periodontium and peri implant tissues; hence provide comfort, esthetic and function. Healthy periodontium means absence of inflammatory signs of disease such as redness, & swelling, suppuration and bleeding on probing, S maintenance of functional periodontal attachment level, minimal or no recession in the absence of interproximal bone loss and functional dental implant.

Gingival and Periodontal Disease

Gingivitis is inflammation of gingiva without loss of epithelial attachment. 13-14 Gingivitis may be categorized as acute and chronic, mild, moderate and severe depending on severity. Also plaque and non plaque induce gingivitis.

Periodontitis is inflammation of periodontium with progressing loss of epithelial attachment.14,15 Different forms of periodontitis observed such as acute and chronic periodontitis, chronic aggressive periodontitis, necrotizing ulcerative periodontitis. Periodontitis as manifestation of systemic disease and periodontitis associated with endodontic lesions. Depending on severity of attachment and bone loss, periodontitis may be mild, moderate and severe; by extend as localized or generalized and according to treatment status as recurrent or refractory. 16,17

^{1.} Dr. Jalal Uddin Mahmood, BDS, DDS, MCPS, Ph D, Professor and Head, Department of Periodontology and Oral Pathology, Dhaka Dental College, Bangladesh

Gingival recession involves loss of periodontal attachment and affects children and adults. Incidence of periodontitis increases with age. 18 Analogous results were found in Periodontic outpatient department (OPD) of Dhaka dental college. Thinning and flat edentulous ridge defects results from loss of alveolar bone and affects esthetics or complicate denture retention and failure of implant placement.

Periodontal examination, diagnosis and assessment of prognosis

Periodontal examination includes proper history taking, medical and dental history, Systemic and local examination, and radiological analysis. In some cases biochemical, microbiologic and other diagnostic test may be necessary in an individual for evaluating the periodontal status of the person.

- Extra oral and intra oral examination to detect non-periodontal and periodontal disease or conditions extended to extra oral area.
- General gingival examination to evaluate the color, texture, shape of the gingiva and related structures.
- To check probing depth, recession, attachment level, to measure the health of sub-gingival area such as bleeding on probing and suppuration, to evaluate clinical furcation condition and to detect periodontal-endodontic lesions.
- Assessment of the presence, degree of distribution of plaque, calculus and gingival inflammation.
- Dental examination comprises caries detection, gingival/periodontal status, proximal contact with adjacent teeth, condition of dental restorations, and prosthetic appliances, and implant status if any.
- Cheek the mobility of teeth and implant if any.
- 7. Occlusion examination.
- Analysis of intra oral, periapical, bite wing and OPG X- ray and other imaging

- 9. Selection of suitability to receive dental Implants.
- Evaluation of periodontal and systemic diseases interrelationships.

All this information should be recorded in the patient's file and communicated to the patient, and /or referred whenever necessary.

Treatment Plan

The clinical findings together with a diagnosis and expected prognosis should be used to develop a logical treatment plan. One type treatment may be appropriate for one section of the mouth, while another approach may be suitable at other sites.

Treatment Procedure/s

A wide range of treatment exists in gingival and periodontal diseases. These include:

- Patients education, training in personal oral hygiene andtooth brushing technique. Use of floss and mouth rinsing
- Removal of supra gingival and accessible sub gingival bacterial plaque and calculus is completed by periodontal scaling.
- Root planing: Comprehensive periodontal root planing is used to treat root surface irregularities to gain attachment of supporting tissues to tooth.
- Finishing procedures, which includes post treatment evaluation with review and oral hygiene instruction. This step is very important to bring success to treatment.
- Periodontal surgical procedure to be performed where necessary. Especially inaccessible area for instance deep periodontal pocket.
- Counseling of risk factors (e.g., smokingmedical status ad stress)
- Consideration of adjunct restorative. prosthetic, orthodontic and or endodontic consultation of treatment.
- Provision of reevaluation during and after periodontal or dental implant therapy.

- solveners on Presocol For Persodontal Therapy when necessary diagnostic testing that may when radiological, microbiological, or hischemical assessment or monitoring during the course of periodontal therapy.
- Follow up for oral hygiene maintenance or periodontal maintenance program at 3 months interval.
- In diabetic patient blood sugar monitoring control before and after treatment is important.
- 12. In blood disorder, proper investigation and precaution is necessary before initiation of treatment. In history of excessive bleeding, thromboplastin regeneration time to be done to determine the factor viii deficiency and it helps to distinguishes from factor IX deficiency.
- 13. In infective patients, like hepatitis B, tuberculosis, strict sterilization and different sets of instruments should use, preferable disposable instruments should use.

The following treatment may be indicated in addition to the above out line procedures:

- 1. Chemotherapeutic agents: These agents may be used to reduce inflammation, eliminate or change the quality of microbial pathogens or change the host response through local or systemic delivary of appropriate agents.
- This include surgery: 2. Periodontal gingivectomy, gingivoplasty, vestibuloplasty to increase width of attached gingival, various types of muco-gingival flap procedures, apical curettage and soft tissue augmentation. Osseous processes include ostectomy and bone grafting. Dental procedures include root hemi-section resection. tooth odontoplasty. Combined osseous and dental tissue procedures may be required for endodontic-periodontal management of lesions.
- 3. Periodontal regenerative procedures include: soft tissue graft, bone grafts, root bio-modification, guided tissue regeneration and combination of these procedures for

- treating osseous, furcation and recession defects. Periodontal regenerative procedures include: guided bone regeneration, ridge augmentation, ridge preservation Implant site development and sinus grafting.
- Periodontal plastic surgery for gingival augmentation, for correction of recession or soft tissue defects and for other enhancement of oral and dental esthetics.
- 5. Occlusion therapy include: Minor tooth movement, occlusion adjustment, splinting or provision of devices to reduce occlusal trauma.
- 6. Pre prosthetic periodontal procedure include: resective Exploratory flap surgery, procedures, regenerative or reconstructive procedures, crown lengthening surgery performed to facilitate restorative or prosthetic treatment plans.
- Selective extraction of teeth, roots in order to 7. facilitate periodontal therapy. In some cases severe periodontitis, extraction of tooth/teeth, bio-modification and then splinting with fiber optic strip and composite material. So as to retain original tooth is possible. Implant site development or Implant, restorative and or prosthetic treatment plans.
- Replacement of teeth by dental Implants.
- 9. Procedures to facilitate orthodontic treatment including: monocortical osteotomy facilitate faster tooth movement, tooth exposure, frenulectomy, fiberotomy, gingival augmentation and Implant placement.

Periodontal Maintenance therapy

After active periodontal treatment, follow up periodontal maintenance visits should include:

- A)
- 1. Assessment of oral hygiene status with reinstruction when necessary.
- Evaluation of current extra and intra oral, periodontal and peri- implant soft tissues as well as dental hard tissues.

- Emphasis to correct way of regular tooth brushing to remove dental plaque, biofilm, stain and calculus. Local delivery or systemic chemotherapeutic agents may be used as an adjunctive treatment for recurrent refractory disease.
- 4. Update of medical and dental histories.
- Identification and treatment of new, recurrent or refractory areas of periodontal pathosis.
- 6. Ramfjord et al (1982), the authors of 18 years study of patients recalled every 3 months, conclude that plaque control self care by the patient during healing phase is extremly important for the preservation and reduction of periodontal pocket and also clinical attachment gain.¹⁹

B)

The patients should be informed of:

- Areas of persistence, recurrent, refractory or new periodontal disease.
- 2. Changes in the periodontal prognosis.
- Advisability of further periodontal treatment or retreatment of indicated sites.
- 4. Status of dental implants
- Other oral health problems noted that may include caries, defective filling and non periodontal mucosal diseases or condition.

Informed consent and Patient Records

When there is chance of risk, potential complications, or the possibility of failure are associated with treatment, informed consent should be taken before commencement of therapy and should be maintained.

The information given to the patient should include the following:

- The diagnosis, etiology, proposed therapy and possible alternative treatment(s). The prognosis with or without proposed therapy.
- Recommendations for referral to other health care providers when necessary

- The reasonably inherent risks and potential complications associated with the proposed therapy, including failure with the ultimate loss of teeth or dental implants
- The need for periodontal maintenance treatment after active therapy due to the potential disease recurrence.
- A long term periodontal maintenance program
 has recommended for the patient to keep
 disease free oral health and maintenance of
 dental implant if present.

Preservation of complete records of diagnosis. treatment, results and recommended follow up are essential, starting with initial examination and continuing for as long as the patient is under care. In some cases for instances systemic diseases such as cardiovascular diseases, uncontrolled diabetes. hepatitis, tuberculosis if proper precaution not taken may adversely affect systemic health that is beyond control of dentist 20-22 and may need to modify periodontal treatment to oral hygiene phase therapy. In some patients limited periodontal therapy done who are medically compromised. 23 Gingival diseases of genetic origin may involve the tissue of the periodontium. Hereditary gingival fibromatosis is one of the most clinically evident conditions-which exhibits autosomal dominant or (rarely) autosomal recessive mode of inheritance.24The gingival enlargement may completely cover the teeth.

Management by Surgical Intervention In short Treatment Strategy:

- Oral hygiene instruction(OHI)-tooth brushing and flossing
- 2. Scaling and polishing.
- 3. In some case root planning
- In case periodontal pocket depth less than 5mm, modified Widman's technique may be used.

- hersels on Protocol For Periodontal Therapy periodontal pocket depth more than 5mm or more periodontal flap surgery.
- Root bio modification and antiseptic irrigation very good impact on periodontium.
- If oral hygiene improves and if needed, gingival augmentation, vestibuloplasty, soft and hard tissue graft can be done.

Conclusion

In conclusion, according to patients overall health condition, dentist will decide by his knowledge and experience which and what extend of treatment should provide maximum benefit.

References

- Mahmood JU, Haider MN, Hossain D, Ahmed S, Hossain MZ. : Periodontal infection and cardiovascular disease relationship; an evidence based review. City Dent. Coll.J.2015;12 (1):
- Mealey BL. Influence of the periodontal infections on systemic health. J Periodontal 2000; 21:197-199
- 3. Nyman S, Lindhe J. A longitudinal study of combined periodontal and prosthodontic treatment of patients with advanced periodontal disease. J Periodontal 1979:50:163-169.
- 4. Philstorm BL, McHugh RB, Oliphant TH, Ortiz-Campose C. Comparison of surgical and nonsurgical treatment of periodontal disease. A review of current studies and additional results after 6 years. J Clinical Periodontal 1983:10:524-541.
- 5. Isidor F, Karring T. Long term effect of surgical and non surgical periodontal treatment. A 5-year clinical study. J Periodontal Res. 1986; 21:462-472.
- Becker W, Becker BE, Ochsenbein C. A longitudinal study comparing scaling, osseous surgery and modified Widman J Periodontal procedures. Results after one year. 1988:59:351-365
- 7. Olsen CT, Ammons WF, Van Belle G. A longitudinal study comparing apically repositioned flap with and without osseous surgery. Int. J Periodontics & Restorative Dent 1985;5:10-33
- 8. Kaldhal WB, Kalkwarf KL, Patil KD, Molvar MP, Dyer JK. Long term evaluation of periodontal therapy I. Respopnse to 4 therapeutic modalities. J Periodontal 1996;67:93-1023
- 9. Lindhe J, WestfeltE, Nyman S, Socransky S, Hafajee. A long term effect of surgical /non surgical treatment of periodontal diseases. J Clin Periodontal 1984;11:448-458

- 10. Johnson GK. Tobacco use and the periodontal patients (position paper) J Periodontal 1999; 70:1419-1427.
- 11. Pennel B, Keagle J. Predisppossing factors in the etiology of chronic inflammatory periodontal disease. J Periodontal 1977; 48:517-532
- 12. Machtel E, ZubreyY, Yehude B, Soskolne. A. Proximal bone loss adjacent to periodontally hopeless teeth with and without extraction. J Periodontal 1989; 60:512-515.
- 13. Amitage GC. Development of a classification system for periodontal diseases and conditions. Ann periodontol 1999;4:1-6.
- 14. Genco RJ. Classification and clinical and radiographic features of periodontal disease. In Genco RJ, Goldman HM, Cohen DW: Contemporary Periodontics, St, Louis. 1990, Mosby.
- 15. Lyons H, Kerr DM, Hine MK: Reports from the 1949 Nomenclature committee of the American Association of Periodontology, J Periodontal 21;40:1950.
- Ranney R Classification of Periodontal Disease. Periodontol 2000;2(13): 1993
- 17. Russell Al. A system of Classification and scoring for prevalence surveys of periodontal disease. J Dental Res.1956;35:350
- 18. Albandar JM, Kingman A. Gingival recession, gingival bleeding and dental calculus in adults 30 years of age and older in the United States , 1988-1994. J Periodontol 1999;70:30-43
- Ramfjord SP, Morrison EC, Burgett FG et al. Oral hygiene and maintenance of periodontal support. J Periodontol 1982; 53(1):26-30.
- 20. Genco RJ. Current view of risk factors for periodontal diseases. J Periodontol 1996;67(Suppl):1041-1049
- Mealey B. Diabetes and periodontal diseases (position paper) J Periodontal 2000;71:664-678
- 22. Page RC, Beck JD: Risk assessment for periodontal diseases, Int Dent J 1997;47:61
- 23. Rose LF, Steinberg BJ, Atlas SL. Periodontal management of the medically comprosed patient. Periodontol 2000 1995;
- 24. Aldred MJ, Bartold PM: Genetic disorder of the gingivae and Periodontium. Periodontol 2000: 1998;18:7

Reviewers of this Issue

- Prof. Dr. Salauddin Ahmed Professor of Periodontology Dhaka Dental College
- Prof. Dr. Md Asif Iqbal Khan Professor and Head Department of Pediatric Dentistry Sapporo Dental College
- 3. Dr. Junaid Ahmad
 Associate Professor and Head
 Department of Dental Pharmacology
 Sapporo Dental College
- Dr. Taslima Rafique
 Associate Professor and Head,
 Department of Biochemistry,
 Sapporo Dental College
- Dr. Sujon Kanti Nath
 Assistant Professor,
 Department of Dental Public Health
 Sapporo Dental College
- 6. Dr. Ashik Elahi Noor Assistant Professor, Department of Dental Public Health Sapporo Dental College

30